>
GPO,

37118

Federal Register/Vol. 85, No. 119/Friday, June 19, 2020/ Notices

SUMMARY: The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC) has recently
submitted a renewal of an existing
collection of information to the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) for
review. The information collection is
entitled, “Requests to Agreement States
for Information.”

DATES: Submit comments by July 20,
2020. Comments received after this date
will be considered if it is practical to do
s0, but the Commission is able to ensure
consideration only for comments
received on or before this date.

ADDRESSES: Written comments and
recommendations for the proposed
information collection should be sent
within 30 days of publication of this
notice to https://www.reginfo.gov/
public/do/PRAMain. Find this
particular information collection by
selecting ““Currently under Review—
Open for Public Comments” or by using
the search function.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
David Cullison, Office of the Chief
Information Officer, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
DC 20555-0001; telephone: 301-415—
2084; email: Infocollects.Resource@
nre.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. Obtaining Information and
Submitting Comments

A. Obtaining Information

Please refer to Docket ID NRC-2019—
0248 when contacting the NRC about
the availability of information for this
action. You may obtain publicly-
available information related to this
action by any of the following methods:

e Federal Rulemaking Website: Go to
https://www.regulations.gov and search
for Docket ID NRC-2019-0248.

e NRC’s Agencywide Documents
Access and Management System
(ADAMS): You may obtain publicly-
available documents online in the
ADAMS Public Documents collection at
https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/
adams.html. To begin the search, select
“Begin Web-based ADAMS Search.” For
problems with ADAMS, please contact
the NRC’s Public Document Room (PDR)
reference staff at 1-800-397-4209, 301—
4154737, or by email to pdr.resource@
nrc.gov. The supporting statement is
available in ADAMS under Accession
No. ML20139A219.

e NRC’s Clearance Officer: A copy of
the collection of information and related
instructions may be obtained without
charge by contacting the NRC’s
Clearance Officer, David Cullison,
Office of the Chief Information Officer,
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission,

Washington, DC 20555-0001; telephone:

301-415-2084; email:
Infocollects.Resource@nrc.gov.

B. Submitting Comments

The NRC cautions you not to include
identifying or contact information in
comment submissions that you do not
want to be publicly disclosed in your
comment submission. All comment
submissions are posted at http://
www.regulations.gov and entered into
ADAMS. Comment submissions are not
routinely edited to remove identifying
or contact information.

If you are requesting or aggregating
comments from other persons for
submission to the OMB, then you
should inform those persons not to
include identifying or contact
information that they do not want to be
publicly disclosed in their comment
submission. Your request should state
that comment submissions are not
routinely edited to remove such
information before making the comment
submissions available to the public or
entering the comment into ADAMS.

II. Background

Under the provisions of the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (44
U.S.C. Chapter 35), the NRC recently
submitted a request for renewal of an
existing collection of information to
OMB for review entitled, “Requests to
Agreement States for Information.” The
NRC hereby informs potential
respondents that an agency may not
conduct or sponsor, and that a person is
not required to respond to, a collection
of information unless it displays a
currently valid OMB control number.

The NRC published a Federal
Register notice with a 60-day comment
period on this information collection on
March 16, 2020 (85 FR 14979).

1. The title of the information
collection: Requests to Agreement States
for Information.

2. OMB approval number: 3150—0029.

3. Type of submission: Extension.

4. The form number, if applicable:
Not applicable.

5. How often the collection is required
or requested: One time or as needed.

6. Who will be required or asked to
respond: Thirty-nine Agreement States
who have signed Section 274(b)
Agreements with the NRC.

7. The estimated number of annual
responses: 624 (1,872 over the course of
the three-year clearance period).

8. The estimated number of annual
respondents: 39.

9. An estimate of the total number of
hours needed annually to comply with
the information collection requirement
or request: 4,992 (14,976 over the course
of the three-year clearance period).

10. Abstract: The NRC is requesting
OMB approval of a plan for a generic
collection of information. The need and
practicality of the collection can be
evaluated, but the details of the specific
individual collections will not be
known until a later time. The
Agreement States will be asked on a
one-time or as needed basis to respond
to a specific incident, to gather
information on licensing and inspection
practices or other technical information.
The results of such information
requests, which are authorized under
Section 274(b) of the Atomic Energy
Act, will be utilized on part by the NRC
in preparing responses to Congressional
inquiries.

Dated: June 16, 2020.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
David C. Cullison,

NRC Clearance Officer, Office of the Chief
Information Officer.

[FR Doc. 2020-13289 Filed 6—18-20; 8:45 am]
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NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

[NRC—2020-0083]

Assumptions Used for Evaluating a
Control Rod Ejection Accident for
Pressurized Water Reactors

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.

ACTION: Regulatory guide; withdrawal.

SUMMARY: The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC) is withdrawing
regulatory guide (RG) 1.77,
“Assumptions Used for Evaluating a
Control Rod Ejection Accident for
Pressurized Water Reactors.” This RG is
being withdrawn because its guidance
has been incorporated into a new RG,
RG 1.236, “Pressurized-Water Reactor
Control Rod Ejection and Boiling-Water
Reactor Control Rod Drop Accidents.”
DATES: The withdrawal of RG 1.77 takes
effect on June 19, 2020.

ADDRESSES: Please refer to Docket ID
NRC-2020-0083 when contacting the
NRC about the availability of
information regarding this document.
You may obtain publicly-available
information related to this document
using any of the following methods:

e Federal Rulemaking Website: Go to
https://www.regulations.gov and search
for Docket ID NRC-2020-0083. Address
questions about NRC docket IDs in
Regulations.gov to Jennifer Borges;
telephone: 301-287-9127; email:
Jennifer.Borges@nrc.gov. For technical
questions, contact the individuals listed
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in the FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
CONTACT section of this document.

e NRC’s Agencywide Documents
Access and Management System
(ADAMS): You may obtain publicly-
available documents online in the
ADAMS Public Documents collection at
https://www.nre.gov/reading-rm/
adams.html. To begin the search, select
“Begin Web-based ADAMS Search.” For
problems with ADAMS, please contact
the NRC’s Public Document Room (PDR)
reference staff at 1-800-397—4209, 301—
415-4737, or by email to pdr.resource@
nrec.gov. The basis for withdrawal of RG
1.77 is available in ADAMS under
Accession No. ML20084N202.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Paul
Clifford, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation, telephone: 301-415—4043,
email: Paul.Clifford@nrc.gov and
Edward O’Donnell, Office of Nuclear
Regulatory Research, telephone: 301—
415-3317, email: Edward.ODonnell@
nrc.gov. Both are staff of the U.S.
Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
Washington, DC 20555—-0001.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

1. Introduction

Regulatory guides may be withdrawn
by the NRC when their guidance no
longer provides useful information or is
superseded by technological
innovations, congressional actions, or
other events. The NRC is withdrawing
RG 1.77 because its guidance has been
incorporated into RG 1.236,
“Pressurized-Water Reactor Control Rod
Ejection and Boiling-Water Reactor
Control Rod Drop Accidents” (ADAMS
Accession No. ML20055F490). The basis
for withdrawal is found in ADAMS
under Accession No. ML20084N202.

II. Further Information

The withdrawal of RG 1.77 does not
alter any prior or existing NRC licensing
approval or the acceptability of licensee
commitments to this RG. Although RG
1.77 is withdrawn, current licensees
may continue to use it, and withdrawal
does not affect any existing licenses or
agreements. However, after the
withdrawal of RG 1.77, licensees should
use RG 1.236 in future requests or
applications for NRC licensing actions
related to the guidance in RG 1.77.

Dated: June 16, 2020.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Meraj Rahimi,
Chief, Regulatory Guidance and Generic
Issues Branch, Division of Engineering, Office
of Nuclear Regulatory Research.
[FR Doc. 2020-13258 Filed 6—18-20; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION
[Docket No. CP2020-176; Order No. 5549]
Inbound Parcel Post (at UPU Rates)

AGENCY: Postal Regulatory Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Commission is
acknowledging a recent Postal Service
filing of a change in rates not of general
applicability to be effective July 1, 2020.
This document informs the public of the
filing, invites public comment, and
takes other administrative steps.

DATES: Comments are due: June 22,
2020.

ADDRESSES: Submit comments
electronically via the Commission’s
Filing Online system at http://
www.prc.gov. Those who cannot submit
comments electronically should contact
the person identified in the FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION CONTACT section by
telephone for advice on filing
alternatives.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
David A. Trissell, General Counsel, at
202-789-6820.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Table of Contents

L. Introduction

II. Contents of Filing

III. Administrative Actions
IV. Ordering Paragraphs

I. Introduction

On June 12, 2020, the Postal Service
filed a notice with the Commission of a
change in rates not of general
applicability for Inbound Parcel Post at
Universal Postal Union (UPU) rates,
pursuant to 39 CFR 3035.105. The
Postal Service intends for the proposed
prices to take effect on July 1, 2020.
Notice at 1.

II. Contents of Filing

In support of the Notice, the Postal
Service filed an application for non-
public treatment (Attachment 1), a
redacted version of the UPU
International Bureau (IB) circular that
provides the negotiated rates
(Attachment 2), a copy of the
certification required under 39 CFR
3035.105(c)(2) (Attachment 3), a
redacted Postal Service data used by the
UPU to justify any bonus payments
(Attachment 4), and a redacted copy of
Governors’ Decision No. 19-1
(Attachment 5). The Postal Service also
filed supporting financial workpapers
under seal. Id. at 2-3.

The Postal Service asserts that the
proposed prices comply with 39 U.S.C.
3633(a) and 39 CFR 3035.107. Id. at 5—

6. Furthermore, the Postal Service states
that it has provided supporting
documentation, as required by Order
Nos. 2102 and 2310.1 In addition, the
Postal Service states that it provided
citations and a copy of the relevant UPU
IB circular, as required by prior
Commission orders.2

II1I. Administrative Actions

The Commission establishes Docket
No. CP2020-176 for consideration of
matters raised by the Notice and
appoints Katalin K. Clendenin to serve
as Public Representative in this docket.
The Commission invites comments on
whether the Postal Service’s filing is
consistent with 39 U.S.C. 3632, 3633,
and 39 CFR part 3035. Comments are
due no later than June 22, 2020. The
public portions of the filing can be
accessed via the Commission’s website
(http://www.pre.gov).

IV. Ordering Paragraphs

It is ordered:

1. The Commission establishes Docket
No. CP2020-176 for consideration of the
matters raised by the Postal Service’s
Notice.

2. Comments are due no later than
June 22, 2020.

3. Pursuant to 39 U.S.C. 505, Katalin
K. Clendenin will serve as an officer of
the Commission (Public Representative)
to represent the interests of the general
public in these dockets.

4. The Secretary shall arrange for
publication of this order in the Federal
Register.

By the Commission.

Erica A. Barker,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2020-13187 Filed 6—18-20; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7710-FW-P

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION

Sunshine Act Meetings

TIME AND DATE: 2:00 p.m. on Wednesday,
June 24, 2020.

PLACE: The meeting will be held via
remote means and/or at the
Commission’s headquarters, 100 F
Street NE, Washington, DC 20549.

1]1d. at 4-5. See Docket No. CP2014-52, Order
Accepting Price Changes for Inbound Air Parcel
Post (at UPU Rates), June 26, 2014, at 6 (Order No.
2102); Docket No. CP2015-24, Order Accepting
Changes in Rates for Inbound Parcel Post (at UPU
Rates), December 29, 2014, at 4 (Order No. 2310).

2Notice at 5. See e.g., Docket No. CP-2019-43,
Order Acknowledging Changes in Prices for
Inbound Parcel Post (at UPU Rates), December 19,
2018 (Order No. 4933).
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